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Annual Report of Holding Companies-FR Y-6 

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year 

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1 )(A) of the Bank 
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C . § 1844(c)(1)(A)); sections 8(a) 
and 13(a) of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 3106(a) 
and 3108(a)); sections 11 (a)(1 ), 25, and 25A of the Federal 
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. §§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec­
tions 113, 165, 312,618, and 809 of the Dodd-Frank Act (12 U.S.C. 
§§ 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(c)(1), and 5468(b)(1)). Return to the 
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of 
copies specified . 

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed by 
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should 
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In the event 
that the top-tier holding company does not have an individual who is 
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must 
sign the report. If the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as 
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General Instructions for the 
authorized individual who must sign the report. 

I, John R. Wilson, Jr. 
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official 

President 
ntle of the Holding Company Director and Official 

attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including 
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre­
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal 
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. 

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this 
report, the Reporter certifies that ii has the authority to provide this 
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies 
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or 
object to public release of information regarding that individual. 
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for 
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's 
"Rules Regarding Availability of Information, · 12 C.F.R. Patt 261 , 
that t epotter i di · sent to public release of all 

erni g hat i ividuat. 

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa­
nies , top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter­
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by 
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require­
ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga­
nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 
211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail 
of who must file .) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon­
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond 
to , an information collection unless it displays a currently valid 
0MB control number. 

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end): 

12131 /17 
Month / Day / Year 

254900LEETLF2JGNOU79 
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI ) (20-Character LEI Code) 

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC . 

Legal Title of Holding Company 

P. 0 . BOX 308 
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box 

HURRICANE West Virginia 25526-0308 

City State Zip Code 

2761 MAIN STREET 
Physical Location (if different from malling address) 

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed: 
JOHN R. WILSON. JR. PRESIDENT 
Name 

304-562-9931 
Area Code I Phone Number / Extension 

304-562-2642 
Area Code I FAX Number 

JWILSONJR@PUTCOBK.COM 
E-mail Address 

WWW.PUTCOBK.COM 

- ---------- -
Title 

Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page 

Date of Signature 

For holding companies lli21 registered with the SEC-
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders: 

D is included with the FR Y-6 report 
0 will be sent under separate cover 
D is not prepared 

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only 

RSSD ID 
C.I. 

Is confidential treatment requested for any portion of ~ 
this report submission? .. . .. .. ...... ................ . ... .. . G=vesc::o:::::J 
In accordance with the General Instructions for this report 
(check only one), 

1. a letter justifying this request is being provided along 
with the report ....... . . . . . . .. . . .. .. . . ... . . . .. . . . .. . .. .. .. . . D 

2. a letter justifying this request has been provided separately ... D 
NOTE: Information for which confidential treatment is being requested 

must be provided separately and labeled 
as "confidential." 

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.50 hours per response. Including time lo gather and 
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the Information col lection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
lnlormatloo, Including suggestions for reducing th is burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systom, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551, and to the 
Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington. DC 20503. 03/2018 



For Use By Tiered Holding Companies 

FRY-6 
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Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies 
below. 

NOT APPLICABLE 
Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal TIiie of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal TIiie of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City State Zip Code City Stale Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from malling address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal TIiie of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal 11tle of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

City Stale z·,p Code City State Zip Code 

----------------
Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (if different from mailing address) 

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company Legal TIUe of Subsidiary Holding Company 

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box (Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street/ P.O. Box 

----------·--·-··----- ~---·---· 
City State Zip Code City State Zip Code 

Physical Location (if different from mailing address) Physical Location (If different from mailing address) 

12/2012 



FORM FR Y-6 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. 
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Report Item 1: Annual Report to Shareholders 

Putnam Bancshares, Inc. is not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission and, as such, does not file a Form 10-K. 

Putnam Bancshares, Inc. prepares an annual report for its shareholders and for public distribution. The 2017 annual report has not been completed at this time and will be forwarded to 
your office as soon as available. Putnam Bancshares, Inc. has engaged an independent CPA firm to prepare audited financial statements as of December 31, 2017 which will appear in the 2017 
annual report. These statements will include all footnotes. 

Report Item 2a: Organizational Chart 

Putnam Bancshares, Inc. 
Hurricane, West Virginia 
Incorporated in West Virginia 
LEI 254900LEETLF2JGNOU79 

0 
100% 

Putnam County Bank 
Hurricane, West Virginia 
Incorporated in West Virginia 
LEI: 254900SRX8H2BWRMDQ91 

-



ANNUAL REPORT OF BANK HOLDING COMPANIES 
FORM FR Y-6 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. 
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2017 

PAGE2 

Report Item 2b: Domestic Branch listing 

The Domestic Branch listing was verified as accurate by the Reporter as of December 31, 2017 and submitted via email to FRB Richmond on 3/17/2018 at 2:03 pm. 



Results: A list of branches for your holding company: PVT NAM BANCSHARES, INC. {1139804j of H;.JRR!CANl:, WV. 

The data are as of 12/.sl/2017. Data reflects information that was received and processed through Q l/<:4/2L•13 

Reconciliation and Verifkation Steps 

1. 1n the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below 

2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column 

Actions 
OK: If the branch information is correct, enter ur· in the Data Action column. 

Change: If the branch information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter ·u'l :.rnt:;:: ' in the Data Action co lumn and the date when this information first became valid in the Effective Date column. 

Close: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter ·cL:..(· · in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effectrve Date column. 

Otdete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository institution, enter 'D!•!dr:' in the Data Action co lumn. 

Ad d: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column. 

If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or lega l sized paper. 

Submission Procedure 

When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact . See the detailed instructions on this site for more information. 
If you are e-mailing this t o your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e-mail. 

Note: 
To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements , you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of (ha!1ge, Ck,<::~:. D,=: i(• U.' or !\drJ 

The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://ylOonline.federalreserve.gov. 

• FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only. Verification of these values is not required . 

Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD• Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County 

OK Full Service (Head Office) 417626 PUTNAM COUNTY BANK 2761 MAIN STREET HURRICANE WV 25526 PUTNAM 

OK Fu ll Service 1161403 INTERSTATE BRANCH 300 HURRICANE CREEK ROAD HURRICANE WV 25526 PUTNAM 

OK Fu ll Service 1926349 VALLEY BRANCH 3058 MOUNT VERNON ROAD HURRICAN E WV 25526 PUTNAM 

Country FDIC UNINUM" 
UNITED STATES Not Required 
UNITED STATES Not Requi red 
UN ITED STATES Not Requ ired 

Office Number• Head omce Head Office ID RSSD· Comments 

Not Required PUTNAM COUNTY BANK 417626 

Not Requi red PUTNAM COUNTY BANK 417626 

Not Required PUTNAM COUNTY BANK 417626 



ANNUAL REPORT OF BANK HOLDING COMPANIES 
FORM FR Y-6 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. 
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 , 2017 
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Report Item 3: Securities Holders 

Current Shareholders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote as of 12/31/2017 

(1)(a) 
Name & Address 
(City, State, Country) 

J. R. Wilson 
Hurricane, WV, USA 

Boyd Meadows 
Hurricane, WV, USA 

Robert S Duckworth 
Barboursville, WV, USA 

(1 )(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

USA 

USA 

USA 

(1 )(c) 
Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 
Securities 

164,021 - 27.34% Common 
Stock 

34,332 - 5.72% Common 
Stock 

34,461 - 5.74% Common 
Stock 

Shareholders not listed in (3)(1)(a) through (3)(1)(c) that had ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote during the fiscal year of 12/31/2017 

{2)(a) 
Name & Address 
(City, State, Country) 

None 

(2)(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

(2)(c) 
Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 
Securities 



ANNUAL REPORT OF BANK HOLDING COMPANIES 
FORM FR Y-6 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. 
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 
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Report Item 4: Insiders 

(1) 
Names & 
Address 
(City, State, 
Country) 

Robert S. Duckworth 
Hurricane, VN, USA 

(2) 
Principal 
Occupation if other 
than with Bank 
Holding Company 

Real Estate Investor 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

CEO and 
Director 

(3)(b) 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

CEO and 
Director - Putnam 
County Bank 

(3)(c) 
Title & Position 
with Other 
Businesses 
(include names 
of other 
businesses) 

President­
RSD, Inc. 

(4)(a) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Bank Holding 
Company 

5.74% 

(4)(b) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

None 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
Other companies 
(includes 
partnerships) 
if 25% or more of 
voting securities are 
held (List names of 
companies and 
percentage of 
voting securities 
held 

D+S Real Estate 
Holding LLC-100%; 
Risiko Realty LLC-
100%; RSD Carolina 
Operations LLC-100%; 
RSD Carolina Real 
Estate Holdings LLC -
100%;RSD Holdings 
LLC-100%; RSD, lnc.-
1 00%; Ente Enterprises, 
Ltd .-100%; Ouckworth's 
CheeseSteakery #3100, 
LLC-100%; Duckworth 's 
CheeseSteakery #3101, 
LLC-100%; Duckworth's 
CheeseSteakery #3102, 
LLC-100%; 



ANNUAL REPORT OF BANK HOLDING COMPANIES 
FORM FR Y-6 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. 
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2017 
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Report Item 4: Insiders - Continued 

(1) 
Names & 
Address 
(City, State, 
Country) 

Robert S. Duckworth 
Hurricane, \/W, USA 

(2) 
Principal 
Occupation if other 
than with Bank 
Holding Company 

(Continued from Page 4) 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

(3)(b) 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

(3)(c) 
Title & Position 
with Other 
Businesses 
(include names 
of other 
businesses) 

(4)(a) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Bank Holding 
Company 

(4)(b) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
Other companies 
(includes 
partnerships) 
if 25% or more of 
voting securities are 
held (List names of 
companies and 
percentage of 
voting securities 
held 

Duckworth 's #3103,LLC 
-100%; Duckworth's 
#3104, LLC-100%; 330 
N Tryon Real Estate, 
LLC-100%; Huntersville 
Crossing Real Estate 
LLC-100%; Oakhurst 
Office, LLC-100%; RSD 
Food Market Real 
Estate Holding #2100, 
LLC-100%; RSD 
Restaurants Real 
Estate Holding #3100 
and Retail Shops. LLC-
100%; Villa Firenze, 
LLC-100%; The Cellar 
at Duckworth's-100% 



ANNUAL REPORT OF BANK HOLDING COMPANIES 
FORM FR Y-6 

PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. 
HURRICANE, WEST VIRGINIA 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 , 2017 

PAGES 

Report Item 4: Insiders - Continued 

(1} (2) 
Names & Principal 
Address Occupation if other 
(City, State , than with Bank 
Country) Holding Company 

W Timothy Hayslett Construction 
Hurricane, '\Nv, USA 

Roger T. Hayslett Construction 
Hurricane, '\Nv , USA 

Stephen Hodges Home Builder 
Scott Depot, '\Nv, USA 

Allison W . Jones N/A 
Hurricane, '\Nv, USA 

Okey M. Landers, Jr. Real Estate Investor 
Charleston, SC. USA 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Executive Vice 
President, 
Treasurer and 
Director 

Director 

(3)(b} 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries} 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

Executive Vice 
President and 
Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
Other companies 
(includes 
partnerships) 

(3)(c} if 25% or more of 
Title & Position (4)(b) voting securities are 
with Other (4)(a} Percentage of held (List names of 
Businesses Percentage of Voting Shares in companies and 
(include names Voting Shares in Subsidiaries percentage of 
of other Bank Holding (include names voting securities 
businesses) Company of subsidiaries} held 

President-Hayslett 4.83% None Hayslett Construction 
Construction Co. Co. - 100% 

Vice President-Hayslett .1 7% 
Construction Co. 

None None 

President-Hodges 2.31 % None Hodges Homebuilders, 
Homebuilders, Inc. Inc. -100% 

None .22% None None 

President-A&C 1.87% None A&C Corporation-80% 
Corporation 
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Report Item 4: Insiders - Continued 

(1) 
Names & 
Address 
(City, State, 
Country) 

Roger K. Randolph 
Scott Depot, 1/1/1/, USA 

(2) 
Principal 
Occupation if other 
than with Bank 
Holding Company 

Engineer 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

Director 

(3)(b) 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

(3)(c) 
Title & Position 
with Other 
Businesses 
(include names 
of other 
businesses) 

President-Randolph 
Engineering Co. 

(4)(a) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Bank Holding 
Company 

.33% 

(4)(b) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

None 

(4}(c) 
List names of 
Other companies 
(includes 
partnerships) 
if 25% or more of 
voting securities are 
held (List names of 
companies and 
percentage of 
voting securities 
held 

Randolph Engineering 
Co.- 50%; Teays Valley 
Storage - 50%; Teays 
River Construction-
25%; DARR 
Development - 25%; CR 
Development-25%; 
RDS Corp - 50%; 
Randolph Trust - 33% 
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Report Item 4: Insiders - Continued 

(1) (2) 
Names & Principal 
Address Occupation if other 
(City, State, than with Bank 
Country) Holding Company 

J. R. Wilson NIA 
Hurricane, Wv, USA 

John R. Wilson , Jr . NIA 
Scott Depot, Wv, USA 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

Chairman of the 
Board 

President and 
Director 

(3)(b) 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

Chairman of the 
President 
Putnam 
County Bank 

President and 
Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

(3)(c) 
Title & Position 
with Other 
Businesses 
(include names 
of other 
businesses) 

NIA 

NIA 

(4)(a) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Bank Holding 
Company 

27.33% 

2.19% 

(4)(b) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

None 

None 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
Other companies 
(includes 
partnerships) 
if 25% or more of 
voting securities are 
held (List names of 
companies and 
percentage of 
voting securities 
held 

NIA 

NIA 

• 
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Report Item 4: Insiders - Continued 

(1) 
Names & 
Address 
(City, State, 
Country) 

Glen Yeager 
Winfield, Wv, USA 

Gary D. Young 
Winfield, Wv, USA 

END OF REPORT 

(2) 
Principal 
Occupation if other 
than with Bank 
Holding Company 

Real Estate 

Construction 

(3)(a) 
Title & Position 
with Bank Holding 
Company 

Director 

Director 

(3)(b) 
Title & Position 
with Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

Director-Putnam 
County Bank 

(3)(c) 
Title & Position 
with Other (4)(a) 
Businesses Percentage of 
(include names Voting Shares in 
of other Bank Holding 
businesses) Company 

President-Yeager .17% 
Land LLC 

President-G & G 2.26% 
Builders, Inc. 

(4){b) 
Percentage of 
Voting Shares in 
Subsidiaries 
(include names 
of subsidiaries) 

None 

None 

(4)(c) 
List names of 
Other companies 
(includes 
partnerships) 
if 25% or more of 
voting securities are 
held (List names of 
companies and 
percentage of 
voting securities 
held 

Yeager Land LLC-50%; 

GOY, LLC-100%; 
G & G Builders, lnc.-
100%; Fourever Young 
LTD Partnership - 51 %; 
G & G Investments -
100%; Keystone LLC -
60%; Cobblestone 
Subdivision, LLC -
100%; No S Properties 
LLC - 47%; Visionary 
Properties LLC - 100%; 
ABCG Properties - 60% 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
P.O. Box I 060 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Hurricane. West Virginia 

262 GEORGE ST. 
BECKLEY, WV 25801 

(3~) 266-1978 
(3~) 266-1971 FAX 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 , 20 17 and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of 
income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards requ ire that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity 's preparation and fai r presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rea~onableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

MEMBERS 

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUEIJC ACCOUNTANTS 
WEST VIRGINIA SOOETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 20 16, and the results of their operations 
and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

//e_µ._
1 

~::1c--.. ·-·4,JQ ! {h.L(_ 

Huntington, West Virginia 
March 15, 2018 

I 

2 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

ASSETS 2017 

Cash and due from banks $ 19,139,217 
Federal funds sold 47,600,000 

Cash and cash equivalents 66,739,2 l 7 

Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value 64,811,453 
Investment securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost 91,541,459 
Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost 39,000 
Loans 396,214,375 
Allowance for loan losses (5,811,612) 

Net loans 390,402,763 
Bank premises and equipment, net 580,239 
Other real estate owned 1,738,269 
Accrued interest receivable 1,429,607 
Other assets 3,876,333 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 621, 158,340 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits: 

Non interest-bearing $ 67,069,056 
Interest-bearing 46 l ,248, l 24 

Total deposits 528,317,180 

Accrued interest payable 1,055,7!0 
Other liabilities 3,743,248 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 533,116,138 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock, $0.50 par value, 1,200,000 shares authorized, 

600,000 shares issued and outstanding 300,000 
Additional paid-in capital 1,000,000 
Retained earnings 89,660,461 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (2,918,259) 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 88,042,202 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 62 I, 158,340 

2016 

$ 17,099,705 
70,000,000 

87,099,705 

70,260,008 

47,883,320 

39,000 

443,121,190 

{7,25 l ,008) 

435,870, 182 

567,201 

3,913,555 

l ,737,824 
4,502,902 

$ 65 l ,873,697 

$ 60,089,407 

497,698,940 

557,788,347 

1,197,192 

3,957,682 

562,943,221 

300,000 
1,000,000 

90,254.759 
(2,624,283) 

88,930,476 

$ 651,873,697 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

2017 2016 
INTEREST INCOME 

Interest and fees on loans $ 21,570,419 $ 23,196,695 
Interest and dividends on investment securities: 

Available-for-sa le I, 136,125 1,320,254 
Held-to-maturity 583,397 217,829 
Federal Reserve Bank 88,385 37,041 

Interest on federal funds sold 545,511 156,294 
Total interest income 23,923,837 24,928,113 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Interest on deposits 4,711,200 4,848,133 

NET INTEREST INCOME 19,212,637 20,079,980 

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 6,031,602 4,830,950 

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER 
PROV!SlON FOR LOAN LOSSES 13, 181,oJS 15,249,030 

NONINTEREST INCOME 
Service fees 397,336 372,046 
Securities gains 8,302 
Rental income 214,592 196,957 
Other income 15,582 52,435 

Total noninterest income 627,510 629,740 

NONINTEREST EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 5,957,449 5,363,626 
Equipment and occupancy expenses 437,727 389,930 
Data processing 1,067,302 1,005,691 
Insurance 437,718 710,127 
Professional fees 674,994 298,534 
Other rea l estate operational losses 232,408 28,215 
Other expenses l, 170,080 1,174,531 

Total noninterest expenses 9,977,678 8,970,654 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,830,867 6,908,116 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2,685,165 2,418,819 

NET INCOME $ 1,145,702 $ 4,489,297 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF TH ESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSfVE INCOME 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

2017 2016 

Net income $ 1,145,702 $ 4,489,297 

Other comprehensive income: 
Unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale securities, net of 

income taxes of$73,338 in 2017 and $28,884 in 2016 (230,214) (49,947) 

Reclassification adjustment for gains realized, net of 
income taxes of $0 in 2017 and $3 ,042 in 2016 (5,260) 

Change in underfunded pension I iabi I ity , net of income taxes (benefit) 
of $(20,313) in 2017 and $35,861 in 2016 (63,762) 62,013 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (293,976) 6,806 

Comprehensive income $ 851,726 $ 4,496,103 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF TH ESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARI ES 
CONSOLrnATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

YEARS ENDED Dl~O: MBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

Accumulated 
Additional Other 

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive 
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) 

BALANCE. Decem ber 31 . 2015 $ 300,000 $ 1.000.000 $ 87,445.462 $ (2,63 1.089) 

Net income 4,489,297 

Other comprehensive income 6,806 

Dividends. $2.80 per share ------ -------- (1 ,680,000) 

BALANCE, December 31, 2016 300,000 1,000,000 90,254,759 (2 ,624,283) 

Ne\ income 1.145.702 

Other comprehensive income (293,976) 

Dividends. $2.90 per share - ------ (I, 7110,000) 

BA I. A NCF. December 3 I, 20 17 $ 300,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 89,660,461 $ (2,918,259) 

Total 

Equity 

$ 86. 11 4,373 

4,489,297 

6.806 

(1,680,000) 

88,930.476 

1. 145.702 

(293,976) 

(1 ,740.000) 

$ 88,042 ,202 

'H IE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE ,\N INTEGRA L P:\RT OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCl :'\L STATEMENTS 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTJVITJES 
Net income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes (benefits) 
Provision for loan losses 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiary, net of distributions 
Net premium amortization on investment securities 
Gain on sale of securities 
Loss on sale of OREO 
(Increase) decrease in : 

Interest receivable 
Other assets 

Increase (decrease) in : 
Interest payable 
Other liabilities 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERA TING ACTJVITJES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities 
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities 
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities 
Purchases of bank premises and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 
Purchases of other real estate owned 
Net (increase) decrease in loans 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) fNVESTJNG ACTIVITIES 

$ 

2017 

I, 145,702 

105,969 
1,398,783 
6,03 I ,602 

267 

( I 82,946) 

I 00,239 

308,217 

(644,340) 

( 141 ,482) 
(298,509) 

7,823,502 

16,315,000 

(I 1,604,938) 

I 03,000,000 
(146,074,742) 

( 119,007) 
3,872,154 

(138,720) 
37,777,430 

3,027,177 

$ 

2016 

4,489,297 

68,295 
( I ,670,3 I 9) 

4,830,950 
777 

483,964 

(8,302) 

7,626 

(94,263) 

( 12 I ,661) 

125,593 
563,592 

8,675,549 

17,289,994 

(5,132,813) 

88,000,000 
(96,712,763) 

(127,582) 
2,3 I 7,542 

( l 0,614,62 I) 

(4,980,243) 

THE ACCOMPANY ING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCTNG ACTIVITIES 
Net increase (decrease) in demand deposits 
Net increase (decrease) in time depos its 
Cash dividends paid 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FTNANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET CHANGE IN CASH A ND CASH EQUIV A LENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDTNG 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES 

Cash paid for interest on deposits and borrowings 

Cash paid for income taxes 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES 

Loans transferred to foreclosed properties 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2017 2016 

13, 143,053 $ 8,404,738 
(42,614,220) 1,767,311 
{1,740,000) (1,680,000) 

(3 1,211, I 67) 8,492,049 

(20,360,488) 12,187,355 

87,099,705 74,912,350 

66,739,217 $ 87,099,705 

4,852,682 .c...$ __ 4-'-, 7_2-'2,:....5 4_0 

2,432,806 .c...$ __ 3..:,, 7_8 .... 9 ':....95_3 

1,658,387 .;_$_....;3..:.,_l l.;;..:3,:....90..;...3 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of operations: Putnam Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") is a West Virg inia corporation headquartered in 
Hurricane, West Virginia. The Company owns all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Putnam County Bank. 
Putnam County Bank (the "Bank") is a West Virginia state-chartered commercial bank that provides commercial, real 
estate and consumer loans and deposit services principally to individuals and businesses in Putnam County, West 
Virginia, and the surrounding areas. The Bank has three banking offices, all loca ted in Hurricane, West Virginia. 

Basis of presentation: The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices within the banking industry. 

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated statements include the accounts of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and its 
wholly-owned subsidiary, Putnam County Bank. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated. 

Use of estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods . Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance 
for losses on loans, the fair value of financial instruments and defined benefit plan obligations and expenses. In 
connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for 
significant collateral. 

The Bank's loans are generally secured by speci fie items of collateral including rea l property, business assets and 
consumer assets . Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' ability to 
honor their contracts is dependent on local economic conditions. 

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts 
of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an 
integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans. Such agencies may 
require the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their judgements about information available to them at the 
time of their examination . Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may 
change materially in the near term . However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be 
estimated. 

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash nows, cash and due from banks 
includes cash on hand, cash items in process of clearing, federal funds sold, and amounts due from correspondent 
banks. 

Securities: Debt securities are classified as "held-to-maturity", "available-for-sale", or "trading" according to 
management's intent. The appropriate classification is determined at the time of purchase of each security and re­
evaluated at each reporting date . 

Securities held-to-maturity: Debt securities for which the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold 
to maturity are reported at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts using 
methods approximating the interest method. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSJD IARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGN I FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Securi ti es available-f'or-sale : Securities not classified as "held-to-maturity" or as "trading·• arc class ified 
as '·ava il able-for-sale· ·. Securities classified as ·'availab le f'or sa le' ' arc those securit ies the Bank intends to 
hold for an indefinite period of time, but not necessari ly to maturity. '·Available-for-sa le" securities are 
report ed at f'air val ue. net of unreali zed ga ins or losses, which are adjusted for applicable income taxes 
and reported as other coniprehensive income. 

Trading sen1r itics: There are no securities classified as '·trnding" in the accompanyi ng financial 
statements. 

Any security that has experienced a decline in va lue. whi ch management deems othcr- than-tt:mporary, is reduced to its 
est imated fair val ue . The related write-down s arc included in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other- than­
ternporury impairment losses . management considers ( I) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has 
been less than cost. (2) the financia l condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the inten t and abili ty or 
the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for uny anticipated recovery in 
fair va lue. Realized gai ns und losses on sales of' securities arc recognized using the spcci fie-identification method. 
Amortization of premiums and accret ion discounts are com puted using the effccti ve interest rate method. 

Investment in limited liability compa ny: The Company entered into an agreement wi th other individuals to form 
Putnam County Title Insurance Agency, LLC. The Company has a controlling interest in the LLC. owning 5 1 %. The 
equity method was used in accounting for the LLC. See Note 15 for additional information. 

Loans: The Bank 's primary market is Putnam County. West Virginia and surrounding areas. The Bank grants 
commerciul , real estate and consumer loans to its customers, most of whom c1re located within the Bank 's primary 
market. Although the Bank has a di vers ified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their 
contracts is dependent upon the Bank's primary rnurket economic conditions, particularly in the real estate sector. The 
concentration of credi t in the regional economy is taken into consideration by management in determining the 
allowance fo r loan losses. 

Loans ,ll'l' ei ther secured or unsecured based on the type of loan and the financial condi tion of the borrower. The loans 
are generally expected to be repaid from cash tlow or proceeds from the sa le of se lected assets or the borrower: 
however. the Bank is exposed to ri sk of loss on any or all louns due to the borrower's difficulties. which can ari se 
from any number of' factors in cl udi ng problems within the respecti ve industry or economic condi ti ons within the 
Bank's primary market. 

Loans are stated at the amount or unpaid principal, reduced by unearned discount and an allowance for loan losses. 
Interest is acc rued dai ly on the unpaid principal balance. 

Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status when principal or interest is greater than 90 days past due based upon 
the• loan's contractual terms, unless such loans are well secured and in the process of collection. Loans that arc Oil a 
current payment status or past clue less than 90 days may also be classified as nonaccrual if repayment in fu ll or 
principal and/or interes t is in doubt. Interest Oil nonaccrual loans is recogni zed primarily using the cost-recovery 
method. 

Loans may be returned to accrual stallls when all principal and interest amoun ts con tractually due arc reasonably 
assured of repayment within an acceptable per iod of time, and there is a sustained period ofrepaymcnt performance 
by the borrower. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARRS, INC. AND SlJBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Allowance for Joan losses: The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred 
through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when 
management believes the uncollect ibi li!y ofa loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries. if any. are credited to 
!he allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management 's 
periodic review· of the collectibiliiy of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume ofihe loan 
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower' s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying 
collateral, and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that arc 
susceptible to significant revi sion as more information becomes available. 

The allowance consist s of speci fie . general, and unallocated components. The speci fie component relates to loans that 
are classified as doubtful , subs tandard, or special mention. For such loans that arc also classified as impaired, an 
al lowancc is -:s!abl ished when the discounted cash nows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired 
loan is lower than the carrying va lue ofthnt loan. The general component covers nonclassified loans and is based on 
historical loss experience adjusted f'or qualitati ve factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover 
uncenainrics tha! could affect management 's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component oft he allowance 
rellects the margin of' imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating 
specific and general losses in the portfolio. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank wi ll be 
unable to collect the schedu led payments or principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the 
loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment inc lude payment status. collateral 
value, and the probability of co ll ecting scheduled principa l and interest payments when due. Loans that experience 
insigni ti cant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines 
the significance of'paymcnt delays and payment shonl"alls on a case- by-case basis. taking into consideration all of'the 
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower. including the length of the delay. the reasons f'or the delay. the 
borrower's prior payment record. and the amount or the shortfall in relation lo the principal and interest owed. 
Impairment is measured 011 a loan-by- loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of 
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan 's obtainable market price. or the 
fair va lue of the collateral if the loan is col lateral dependent.. 

Off-balance sheet linanci:11 instruments: In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into oft~balance sheet 
financial instruments consisting of commitments to ex tend credit, commercial letters of credit. and standby letters of 
credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financia l statements when they are funded or 
rclated fees are incurred or received . 

Bank premises and equipment: l3ank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed prim1:1rily 011 the straight-line method for Bank premises and equipment over the estimated 
useful lives of the respective assets as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 
Equipment, fixtures and veh icles 

I 0-40 years 
3- 10 years 

Repairs. maintenance and minor improvements are charged 10 occupancy and equipment expense as incurred. Major 
improvements and additions to premises and equipment are capitalized. Gains or losses on disposition. if any. arc 
inc luded in current operations. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Other real estate owned: Other real estate owned consists of real estate held for sale which was acquired through 
foreclosure on loans secured by such real estate. At the time of acquisition, these properties are recorded at the lower 
of cost or appraised market value with any write down being charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to 
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying 
amount or fair value less estimated selling costs. Revenues and expenses incurred in connection with operating these 
properties and any direct write downs are included in net cost of operations of other real estate in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 

Bank-owned life insurance: The Bank purchased a life insurance policy on a key executive. Bank-owned life 
insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date, which is 
the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that arc probable at settlement. 

Advertising costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in other operating expenses. Advertising 
expense was $115,307 and $161 ,981 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Compensated absences: Compensated absences have not been accrued since they cannot be reasonably estimated 
due to restrictions on usage. The Bank recognizes the cost of compensated absences when actually paid. 

Employee benefit plans: The Bank accounts for its defined benefit plan in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (''F ASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 715, Employer's Accounting for 
Pensions. See Note 9 for additional information. 

The Bank adopted a 40 I (k) plan effective January l, 2013, and its defined benefit pension plan was frozen as of 
October 31, 2012 . The Bank will still be accountable for past pension obligations and will continue to fund the 
pension plan as needed. 

Income taxes: Putnam Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary tile a consolidated federa l income tax return . Income taxes 
are provided for the tax effects of the transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes currently 
due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the bases of the allowances for loan losses, unfunded 
pension liability and unrealized gains/losses on available-for-sale securities . Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities 
are expected to be settled or realized. Valuation allowances are established when deemed necessary to reduce deferred 
tax assets to the amount expected to be realized within a short term. 

Other comprehensive income: Accounting principles generally require that recogn ized revenue, expenses, and gains 
and losses be included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and 
losses on available-for-sale securities and amortization of deferred gains and losses associated with the Company 's 
pension plan, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with 
net income, are components of other comprehensive income. The components of other comprehensive income and 
related tax effects are presented within the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SlJBSTDlARJES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAN Cl AL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGN! FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuccl) 

Earnings pu share: Earnings per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the we ighted 
average number or common shares outstanding during the period. 

2017 2016 --------
Net i ncomc $ 1.145.702 $ 4,489,297 

r~arnings per common share $ 1.91 $ 7.48 

Divdcnds paid per common share $ 2.90 $ :2 .80 

Reclassifications: Ce11ain reclassifications have bc.:n made to prior year's financial statements to place them on a 
basis comparable with the current year. 

Dale of management's review of subsequent events: Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 
15 , 20 18, the date which the financial statements we re availab le to be iss ued. 

Recent accounting pronouncements: The fo llowing is a summary or recent authoritative pronouncements that could 
impact the accounting. reporting and/or disclosure or financial information by the Company . 

1 n March :20 17, the F/\SB issued 2017-07, Improving rhe Presemation ofNer f'ffindic Pension Cos! and N f!i Periodic 
Pos1re1irement Be11eji1 Cos/. Under general ly accepted accounting principles (GAAP). defined benefit pension cost 
and rostretircment bcnclit cost (net benefit cost) comprise several components that retlect di ffcrcnt aspects of an 
emp loyer's financial arrangements as we ll as the cos t of benefits provided to employees. Those components are 
aggregated for reporting in the Jinirncial statements. Topic 715 , Compensation-- Retirement Benefits. does not 
prescribe where the amount or net benefit cost shou ld be presented in an employer's income statement and does not 
req uire ent iti es to disclose by line item the amount of net benefit cost that is included in the income statement or 
cap italized in assets . Many stakeholders observed that the presentation or defined benefit cost on u net basis combines 
elements that are heterogeneous. /\s such, these stakeholders stated that the current presentation requirement is less 
transparent. reduces the decision usefulness of the financial information, and requires users to inc l1r greater costs in 
ana lyzing financial statements. To improve the reporting of net benefit cost in the financial statements, the Board 
added a standard-setting project to prnvide add itional guidance on the presentation of net benefit cost in the income 
statcmcm and on the components eligible for capitalization in assets. The amendments in th is update arc effective for 
annual periods beginning after December 15.2018, and arc not expected to have a material impact on the Company 's 
linmll'ial statements. 

In March 2017, the FASB issued 20 17-08, Premium Amorti::.ation on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The Board 
is issuing thi s Update to amend the amortization period for certain purchased ca llable debt securities held at a 
premium. The Board is shortening the arno11ization period for the premium to the earli est ca ll date. Under current 
gcncm l ly acce pted accounting princ iples (GA/\ P). entities general ly amortize the premium as an adjustment of yield 
over the con tractual lil'c or the instrument. Stakeholders raised concerns that current GAAP excludes certain callable 
debt securiti es from consideration or ea rl y repayment or principal even if the holder is certain that the call will be 
exercised. /\s a result, upon the exercise or a ca ll on a cal lable debt security held at a premium, the unamorti zed 
premium is recorded as a loss in earnings. Additionally, stakeho lders told the Board that there is diversity in practice 
( I) in the amorti zation period for premiums of callable debt sec urities and (2) in how the potential for exercise ofa 
call is factored into current impairment assessments. The amendments in thi s update are effective for annual periods 
beginning afkr December 15. 2019. and arc not expcct'ed to have a material impact on the Company's financial 
sta tements. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGN! FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

In August 2017, the F ASB issued 2017-12, Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities. 
Stakeholders indicated that the hedge accounting requirements in current generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAA P) sometimes do not permit an entity to properly recognize the economic results of its hedging strategics in its 
financial statements . Those stakeholders maintained that improvements to the hedge accounting model are needed to 
facilitate financial reporting that more closely reflects an entity's risk management activities. In addition, stakeholders 
note that the effect of hedge accounting on an entity's reported results often is difficult to understand and interpret. 
They emphasize that reported results should help financial statement users to better understand an entity's risk 
exposures and how hedging strategies are used to manage those exposures. The amendments are effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2019, and are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial 
statements. 

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company 's financial position, results of operations or cash flows . 

NOTE 2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 

Certain reserves are required to be maintained at the Federal Reserve Bank. The requ irement as of December 31 , 2017 
and 2016 was $8,276,000 and $6,800,000, respectively. At December 31 , 2017 and 2016, the Bank had accounts at 
correspondent banks, excluding the Federal Reserve Bank, which exceeded the FDIC insurable limit of$250,000 by 
$3,0 I 0,008 and $2.3 17,819, respectively. 

NOTE 3. SECURITIES 

The amortized gains, unrealized losses and estimated fair values of securities at December 31 , 2017 and 2016, are as 
follows : 

December 31, 2017 
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized 

Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value 

A vai !able-for-sale: 
U.S. Government treasuries $ I 0,095,206 $ $ (54,386) $ 10,040,820 
U.S. Government agencies 50,529,588 5,784 (95,781 ) 50.439,591 
Municipal bonds 2,815, I 05 59,913 2,875,018 
Mutual funds 1,500,000 {43 ,976) 1,456,024 

Total available-for-sale $ 64,939,899 $ 65,697 $ (194,143) $ 64,811,453 

Held-to-maturity : 
U.S. Government treasuries $ 91,541 ,459 $ 589 $ (64,259) $ 91,477,789 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 3. SECURITIES (continued) 

December 31, 2016 
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized 

Amortized Cost Gains Losses Fair Value 
···- ---

A vai !able-for-sale: 
U.S. Government treasuries $ 10,124.782 $ 44,148 s (7.800) $ 10,161.130 
U.S. Government agencies 55 ,790.629 294.766 56,085,395 

Municipal bonds 3.135,000 48,794 (13 1,500) 3,052.294 
Mutual funds 1,000,000 (3 8,8 11) 961 , 189 

Total ava ilable-for-sa le $ 70,050,411 $ 387,708 $ ( 178, I I I) $ 70,260,008 

I le Id -to-maturity: 
U.S. Government treasuries $ 47,883,320 $ 3,365 $ (7,740) $ 47,878,945 

f'hc fol lowing table shows the proceeds from maturities. sales. and cal Is of available fo r sa le securities and the gross 
realized gains and losses on those sales. Gains and losses arc computed using the specific- identification method . 

2017 2016 

Proceeds from maturities. sa les and cal Is $ 1,308.275 $ 2.278,041 ------
$ - $ 8.302 Gross realized gains ------ ------

Cross realized losses $ - $ ---- ------
The scheduled maturities of securities at December 3 I, 2017. by contractual maturity, arc shown below. E.)(pected 
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the ri ght to call or prepay obligations 
with or without ca II or prepayment penalties. 

Available-for-sale securities Held-to-matu ri ty securities 

/\moriizcd Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value 

Due within one year $ 25.039,308 $ 25.029.735 $ 91 ,541.459 s 91,477 ,789 
Due after one year through live years 35.585,486 35.450.675 
Due alter five years through ten years 
Due after ten yea rs 4,315,105 4.331,043 ------

Totals $ 64,939,899 $ 64,811,453 $ 91 ,541 ,459 $ 91,477.789 

At December 31.2017 and 2016, the carrying value of securities pledged to secure publ ic funds totaled $76.650.000 
and $75,910,000, respccti vely. At December 3 I, 2017 and 20 16, the estimated fair va lues totaled $76,999,077 and 
$77,1 10.040, re spectively. and were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as requi red or permitted 
by law. 

15 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIAR1ES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 3. SECU RITI CS (continued) 

Impairment is evaluated considering numerous factors. and their relative significance varies from case to case. Factors 
conside red include the length of time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost; the financial 
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer; and the intent and ability to retain the secmi ty in order to allow for an 
Hnticipated recove ry in market value. If, based on the analysis, it is determined that the impairment is other-than­
temporary. the security is written down to foir value. and a loss is recognized through earnings. There were no other­
than-temporary impairment losses for the years ended December 3 I , 2017 and 2016. 

The Bank had 12 available-for-sale securities and 43 held-to-maturity securities wi th an unreali zed loss position at 
December 3 1, 2017. These securities are predominately rated investment grade securi ties and the unrealized losses are 
due lo overall market interest rah.: fluctuations and not due to any underlying credit concerns oft he issuers. The Bank 
has the intent and ability to hold such investments until maturity or market price recovery. Accordingly, the Bank has 
concluded that none of the securi ties in its in ves tment portfolio arc other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31. 
2017. 

The following table summari zes the fair value and gross unrealized losses of securities. aggregated by major 
investment category and le ngth of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position: 

Lkccmher 3 I 2017 
1\ vai lah lc-frir-sa le 

l J .S. (Jovc111ment lrcasurics 

U. S. tlov~rnm..:nl a~encies 

Municipal bonds 
!\·lutual ftmds 

rornl available-for-sale 

I lcld-10-maturity: 

Less thnn 12 lvtonths 

s 

Estimated 
l'ai r Value 

1.984,570 
35.397.350 

494.836 - -··--
S 40,876.756 

$ 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

( 12 .502) 
(95.782) 

__ l~~) 

$ (113,4-18) 

12 Months or More 

s 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

5.056,250 

-··· ·-· % 1,189 
s 6,017.439 

$ 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

('t 1.884) 

__ (~JUJ..) 

s (80,695) 

U.S. Government treasuries S 8tl.526. I 5 I $ (6-1.259) _s ___ _ s 

December 3 I , 20 I Ii 
/1 vai lable-lhr-salc: 

lJ .S. Government treasu ri es 
l!.S. Go,cmrncnt agencies 
IVt uni~iral bonds 
Mutuul fund s 

Tomi ava ilab le-l'or-salc 

Held-to-maturity: 

Less than 12 Months 

$ 

l:stimnl<!d 
Fair Value 

- ----
$ 

$ 

Gross 
Unrea li zed 

Losses 

-----
$ 

12 Monrhs or More 

$ 

Estimated 
Fair Value 

5.122.070 

I. l 83.500 
961.189 - -------

$ 7,266.759 

s 

s 

Gross 
Un rea li zed 

Losses 

(7.80 1) 

( 131 .500) 
(38.8 11 ) 

(1 78, 112) 

Li.S. Ciovcrnmcnt lrca,urks S 23.925.923 $ (7.740) _$ ___ _ s 

lo 

Total 

$ 

Estimated 
fair Value 

I 0.040.820 
35.397.350 

__ 1.456.025 

$ 46.894.195 

$ 

$ 

$ 80.526, 151 $ 

$ 

s 

Total 

btimutcd 
Fair Value 

5. 122.070 

1.183.500 
961.189 

7.266.7 59 

$ 

s 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

(5086) 
(95.782) 

(43,975) 

( 194, 1·13) 

(64.259) 

Grnss 
l lnrcalizcd 

Losses 

(7.801) 

(131 ,500) 
(38.811) 

( 178. 112) 

S 23.\125,923 _$ ____ (7_.7_4_0) 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, fNC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 3. SECURITIES (contin ued) 

Restric ted investments, al cost 

Federal Reserve Bank stock. which represents a required investment in the common stock of the Federal Reserve Bank 
( FRB ). is carried at cost as a restricted long-term investment at December JI, 2017 and 20 16. The balance for FRB 
stock at December 3 I, 20 17 and 2016 totaled $39.000. 

NOTE 4. LOANS 

The following ti1bl e summarizes the components of the Bank's loan portfolio as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

I .oans 
2017 2016 

Colllmercial 
Real estate 

$ 118.436,442 $ 141, 151,557 

Construction 
221 .689, I 85 229.666.242 

Other 40,346.721 49,490, I 86 

Cross loans 
- - 15,742,027 22.813.317 

Less unearned interest on installment loans 
396.214,375 443,121.302 

Total loans 
( 112) 

Less allowance for loan losses 
396.214,375 443, I 2 I. 190 

(5,811,612) (7,251.008) 
Loans. net 

$ 390,402,763 $ 435,870,182 

A summary of risk characteristics by loan portfolio classification follows: 

Commercial: This portfolio consists of nonresidential illlproved real estate, which includes shopping 
centers, orticc buildings, etc. New loans in this portfolio are typically balloon loans with initial fixed rate 
terms of five years and generally have an original loan-to-value (''LTV") of85% or less . These properties 
are generally located in the Bank's normal lending area. 

Real Estate: This portfolio primarily consists of owner-occupied, foll documentation loans secured by 
propcnics in the Bank's normal lending area. New loans in this portfolio are typically balloon mortgages 
with an initial fixed rnte term or IO years and generally have an original LTV of90% or les s. 

Construction: This portfolio consists or residential and commcrc:ial construction loans. Loans in this 
portfolio arc typically set for an interest only period of 12 months. during construC'tion phase. Rates arc 
typically prime plus 2% and usually have a set floor of 5%. 

Other: This portfolio consists of loans that arc unsecured. sec ured by automobiles, or secured by deposit 
accounts. This portfolio is generally granted to local customers only. 

Management monitors the credit qua lity of its loans on an ongoing basis . Any loan that is 30 days past payment is 
considered past due and is included in the past due table below. Past due loans are examined to identity loans for non­
accrual status, which are normally loans that are 90 days past due. unless special circumstances exist. Loans may bt: 
returned to accrual status when repayment is reasonably assured and there has been demonstrat'ed performance under 
the terms of' the loan. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 4. LOANS (continued) 

The f<.1l lowing tables presen t the contractu al ag ing of the recorded investment in past due loans as of December 3 1. 
2017 and 20 I 6: 

Dec~mbcr 3 1, 2017 
Recorded 

in h"Stm t: nl >GO 
Pasl dut: da~·~ and 

/Jo/lur.\· in 1Jw11.wnds 30-59 Davs 60-89 Days ,, 90 l)a1 s Total Cu rrent Total loans ~11..·cru1ng 

Commcn.:wl $ 2A7J s 1.292 $ 7 .2(1'/ $ 11,032 $ 1117.-10•1 $ 118,436 $ 

Rc:, I ~st.a te 2,183 2.726 ,1.759 9.668 212.021 221.68') ,l<l 

Construc11on 2.901 (,83 5.795 9,379 30. 968 40.]4 7 

Other 212 I JI 356 I 5,386 15.7•12 
- -· ··-···-··· ·· -----··-···--· 

Total s $ 7,779 $ 4,704 $ 17.952 $ 30.435 $ 365.779 s 396,214 $ 4() 

D~cembcr 31, 2016 
Recorded 

lrlVt...'SllllCllt >9() 

Past due days and 

l)o/lars w 1ho11s,mds J 0-5CJ Days 60-89 Days > '10 Days Total Current Total loans accruing 

Commcn:ial j; :\./180 $ 4.0X2 $ l .:J9(J s 11.152 $ 130,000 $ 141.1 S2 s S02 

Real c-,;tatc 6 ,259 1,972 2.'I 17 IO.M8 219,018 229.(,66 2.007 

Construction J .3-10 430 -1,503 8.273 41 ,2 17 49.4 90 547 

<)thcr ·l.11 -153 4 888 21 .925 22.813 ,J 
·-·---·--- ·-------····-

lntals ~ I :\.710 $ 6.937 $ 8,314 $ 30.961 $ 412,160 $ 443, 121 s 3.360 

The fol lowing table present s the non-acc rual loans included in the net bnlancc or loans at December 3 I, 2017 and 
20 I 6. respectively. 

Commercial 
Real eslate 
Construct ion 
Other· 

Tota ls 

$ 

$ 

20 17 

11.479,048 

9,227.634 

7,470,477 

184.748 

28,36 1,907 

2016 

$ 6,379,000 

4.378,982 

4.751,312 

56,483 

$ I 5,565,777 

I 1· interesi 011 non-accrual Joa ns had been accrued. such income woul d have approxi mated$ I .786,564 und $584.422 
ror the years December 31, 20 17 imcl 2016, respec ti ve ly. 

Loans are catego ri zed into risk categories base<l on relevant information about the abi lity of borrowers to service their 
deb1 such as current fina ncia l information, historical payment experience, credit documentation. pub li c information. 
and current economic trends. among other factors . The Bank assigns cred it quality indicators of pass. special men tion, 
substandard and doubtful to its loans . The fo llowing definitions are used for ri sk grades : 

18 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE -4. LOANS (continued) 

Pass: Loans in this category arc characterized by borrowers with an average to strong financial condition, 
sufficient cash flows to serv ice the debt, and repayment hi story is satisfactory . 

Special Mention: Special mention loans have potential weaknesses that deserve management' s attention. 
lflefl uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repaymen t prospects. 

Substandard: /\ substandard Joan is inadequately protected by the sound worth and paying capacity of the 
borrower or the col lateral pledged. Loss potential , while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard 
loans. does not have to exist in individual assets. They require more intensive supervision by 
management. 

Doubtful: Doubtful loans have all the weaknesses inherent in substandard Joans. with the added 
characteristic that the weaknesses make col lection or liquidution in full. on the basis ofcurrently existing 
facts. conditions. and values. highly questionable and improbable. These nre poor quality loans in which 
neither the co ll ateral, if any, nor the financial cond ition of the borrower ensure collectability in full. 
Loans classified as doubtful are considered impaired. 

The following tables present Joans based upon the internal risk ratings by class: 

Pass 
Specinl mention 
Substandard 
Doubtful 

Total s 

l)ass 

Special mention 
Substandard 
Doubtful 

Totals 

Commercial 

$ 61,883.920 
31.21 1.793 
25.340.729 

··--·-······ 
$ I 18 ,436,442 

Commercial 

$ l l 6.349,424 
8.445,348 

16.356.785 

$ 14 1,151,557 

Real estate 

$ 194.905.469 
8,295,04 I 

I 8,488.675 

.. - ----········-
$ 221.689. I 85 

Real estate 

$213 ,008,737 
5. 188,748 

I l.468, 757 

---·······-
$ 229.666,242 

December 3 I. 20 17 
Construction Other Total 

$ 27.903,808 $ I 1.379,6 19 $ 296,on.s 16 
2.268,579 3.683.268 45.458.68 I 

I 0, 174 ,334 679. 140 54.682,878 

- -.. - -······- -··-·--·····- - - --- - ·-···--"· 
$ 40.346,72 l $ 15,742,027 $396,214,375 

December 3 I, 2016 
Construction Other Total 

$ 40,85 I ,51 I $ 22,098,829 $ 392,308.50 I 
6. 154,936 50 I .694 20,290.726 
2.483 .739 212,682 30,52 1.963 

--------- -----
s 49.490.186 $ 22,8 13.205 $443,121.190 

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes loans to directors, executive officers, stockholders and their 
aftiliates on substantially the same terms , includ ing interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for 
comparable transactions with other customers and did not, in the opinion of management, in volve more than the 
normal credit risk . 

19 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SU BSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOT E 4. LOAN S (continued) 

T he fo llowing presents the acti vity with respect to loans to re lated part ies frir 20 17 and 201 6: 

B alances - January I . 

New loans 

Repayments 

B alances - December 31, 

$ 

$ 

20 17 

I 2, I 74.003 $ 

456,848 
(818. l 02) 

11,812,749 $ 

The following is a sulllmary or im pai red Joans by class at December 3 I. 20 17 and 20 16: 

Wit h a re liitccl allowance 
Commercial 

Rea l estate 

Construc ti on 

Other 

T ota ls 

With no rela ted all own nee 
Commerc ial 

Rea l estate 

Constructi on 

O ther 

T otals 

Tot:11 

Commercial 

Real estate 

Construc ti on 

Other 

Totals 

20 

Unpaid 

pri ncipal 

ba lance 

$ 4,792, 174 
5.632,570 

10,054 

------
$ I 0,434, 798 

$ 12.481,969 
23,902,457 

725.985 
28.303 

$ 37.138.7 14 

$ 17,274, 143 
29,535,027 

736,039 
28,303 

$ 47.573,5 12 

D ecember 31. 2017 

Re lated 

al lowance 

$ 1,843.80 I 
673 ,865 

10.054 

--------
$ 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

2,527,720 

1.843.80 I 
673 .865 

10,054 

2,527,720 

20 16 

12,458.445 
1,095,5 12 

{1,379,954) 

12.1 74,003 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Inte rest 

income 

recogn ized 

370,297 
236.500 

887 

607 ,684 

728.665 
1,013.970 

54,542 

1.122 

1,798.299 

1,098,962 
1,250,470 

55,429 
I , 122 

2,405,983 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 4. LOANS (continued) 

With a related allowance 
Commercial 
Real es ta te 

Construc ti on 
Other 

Totals 

With no related allowance 
Commercial 

Rea l estate 

Construction 
Other 

Totals 

Total 
Commercial 

Real estate 

Const rucl ion 

Other 

Totals 

NOTE 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

Unpaid 
principal 

balance 

$ l 0,745,435 

5.618.410 

304,547 

___ ., ____ 
$ 16,668,392 

S 9,827,522 

14.650,677 

1,472,077 

$ 25.950,276 

$ 20,572.957 

20,269.087 

1,776,624 

$ 42,618.668 

December 3 l, 2016 

Related 
al lowance 

$ 4,369,073 

1,038.382 

65.399 

------ ----
$ 5.472.854 

$ 

$ 

$ 4,369,073 

1.038,382 

65.399 

$ 5,472,854 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Interest 
income 

recognized 

525,835 

174.412 

12.324 

712 .571 

293.692 

635,057 

50.612 

979,361 

819.527 

809,469 

62,936 

1,691,932 

The allowance is compri sed of'three distinct reserve components: (1) specific reserves related to loans individually 
eva luaicd. (2) quantitative reserves related to loans collectively eva luated, and (3) qualitative reserves related to loans 
collectively evaluated. A summary of the methodology the Bank employs on a quarterly basis with respect to each of 
these components in order lo evaluate the overall adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is as follows: 

Specific Reserve for Loans Individually Evalunted 

To identify loans considered for impairrnent evaluaiion, management will begin with a revievv of' the Loan Po11folio 
Watch List. .A loan is impaired when. based on cu rrent in formation and events. it is probab le that the Bank will be 
un ab le to collect all amourns due according to the contractua l tcrrns of the loan agreement. ··All amount5 due. 
according to the eontractual terms". means that both the rontrm:tual interest payments and the contractual principal 
payments or a loan will be collected as schedu led in the loan agreement. However, an insignificant delay or 
insignificant shortfall in amount of pay,nents on the loan does not mean the loan is impaired. 

Once determined tu be impaired, impairment will be measured by the present value of expected cash flow at the loan 's 
effective interest rate, less th e fair value of the loans· collateral and costs to se ll. Loans determined to be impaired will 
be identified and listed individually with the impairment measurement amount (even if the amount is zero) . These 
loans will be deducted from the appropriate loan pool when calculating the estimated loss under ASC 450- 10. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSTOIARrns 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 

Quantitative Reserve for Loans Collec tively Evaluated 

Under /\SC 450-10, loss estimates arc calcu lated for groups of Joans with similar ri sk characteristics. The Bank 
idcnti fies the similar Joan groups as Commercial. Real Estate, Construct ion, and Other. Charge-off amounts are 
compared to average loans outstanding to calculate a 2- Year I Ii stork Average Loan Loss f>c.:rcemage. This percentage 
is applied to the current loans outstanding for each loan pool, less the impaired loans for each loan pool. The result is 
the required general reserves amount. 

Q11aliH1tive Reserve for Loans Collectively Evaluated 

The Bank also considers the necessity to adjust the average hi storical net loan charge-off rates relative to each of the 
above loan pools for potential ri sk factors that could result in actua l losscs deviating from prior loss experience. Such 
qua litative risk factors consickred arc: (I) levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired lorrns, (2) effects of any 
changes in the quality of'the loan review system and findings, (3) trends in vol ume and term of loans, (4) effects of 
an y changes in risk selec tion and underwriting standards, and other changes in lending policies. procedures , and 
practice, (5) experience. ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff~ (6) national and local 
economic trends and conditions, (7) industry conditions such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements. 
( 8) elfocts of changes in credit concentrations. and (9) effects of changes in the value of underlying collateral. 

!\ctivity in the allowance for loan losses by loan class for the years ended December 31.2017 and 2016, is as follows: 

2017 Commercial Real estate Construction Other Total 

Allowance for loan loss 
l3eginning balance 

Charge-offs 
Recoveries 

$ 5,420,770 $ 632,430 $ I , 143 ,250 $ 54,558 $ 7,251 .008 

Provision 

l~nding balance 

Allowanrc related to: 

Loans individually evaluated 

(3,564,797) 

285,210 

1,592.442 

S 3,733,625 

for impainne111 $ 1,843,80 I 
l.oans colkctive ly evaluated 

for impairment 

Totals 

Loans 

Loans individually evaluated 

-- 1,889,824 

$ 3, 7.<J,625 

for impairment S I 7.274, 143 
Loans col lective ly evaluated 

for impairment 

Totals 
IO 1. 162.299 

$ I I 8,436,442 

(631,3 15) (3, 135, 115) 

36. 19 1 

441.479 3,572,394 

$ 478. 785 

s 673.865 s 10,054 

__1)25.080) 1,570,47?_ 

$ 478,785 $ 1,580,529 ---------
$ 29,535.027 

192,154, I 58 

$ 221,689,185 

$ 736,039 

39.610.682 

$ 40,346,721 

(505,770) (7,836.997) 
44.597 

425,288 

S I 8.673 

$ 

18.673 

$ 18,673 

$ 28.303 

15,713,724 

$ 15,74 2,027 

365.998 

_ 6.0JG~Ql 

$ 5.811 ,612 

$ 2.527. 720 

J,283.892 

$ 5,811,612 

S 47.57.1.512 

348,640,863 

$ 396,214,375 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCJAL STATEMENTS 

NOT E 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 

2016 Commercial Real estate Construction Other 

Allowance for loan loss 
Begi nning b1tlance $ 1,960.863 $ 682,374 $ 352,8 12 $ 85. 156 

Charge-offs (651 ,670) (30,685) 

Recoveries 19,584 1.624 
Provision 4,09 1,993 (49,944) 788.814 87 

Endin g balance $ 5,420,770 $ 632,430 $ 1. 143,250 $ 54 ,558 

Allowance related to: 
Loans individually eva luated 

for im pairment $ -l,369,073 $ 1,0.l8J82 $ ()5,399 $ 

Loans coll ecti ve ly eva lu ated 
for i111 pai rment _} .051,697 (405 .952) -- 1.077,851_ _ 54,558 

Totals $ 5.420,770 $ 632,430 $ I, 143,250 $ 54,558 
·-· . -· -·· -· ·-· --

Loan s 
l,oans in div idually eval uated 

for i111pa irment s 20,572.957 $ 20,269,087 $ 1.776.624 $ 

Loans co llectively evaluated 
lbr impairment 120,578,600_ _ 209,397 . 1_55_ _ 47,713,562 _ 22 ,8 1 J,205 

Totals s 14 1,15 1,557 $ 229,666.242 $ 49,490,186 $ 22 ,8 13.205 

Total 

$ 3,081,205 

(682.355) 

2 1.208 

4,830 .950 

$ 7.25 I ,008 

$ 5.472.854 

1.778.154 

$ 7,251 ,008 

s 42.6 18,668 

400.502.522 

$ 443 , 12 1,190 

Both commercial and consumer loans are deemed impaired upon bei ng con tractua lly mod ified in a trou bl ed debt 
restructuring (''T OR''). TDR s typ ical ly resu lt from loss mitigat ion act ivi ti es and occur when the Bank grants a 
concess ion to a bo rrower who is experiencing fi nancial difficulty in order to mi ni mize the loss . The mod ifications to 
the Company's TDRs for the yea rs ended December 3 1, 20 17 and 20 16 were concessions on the interest rate charged 
and paying rea l estate taxes. The effect of the mod ifica tio ns to the Company was a red ucti on in interest ir1corne. Once 
rest ru ctu red in a TDR. a loan is genera lly conside red impa ired unt il its matu rity, regardless of whethe r the borrower 
pe rfo rms under the modi fi ed terms. Al though such a loan may be re turned to accrual status ifa ll principa l and interest 
is pai d to date. the loa n wou Id con tinue to be eva luated for an asset-spec ific allowance for loan losses . 

The l'o ll owi ng tables present TD Rs. modified by t:lass at December 31.20 17 and 20 16: 

201 7 
Commercial 
Real estate 

Construction 
Other 

Totals 

)' __ .) 

N umber or 
con tracts 

7 
13 

------
20 

Unpa id pri ncipa l 
balance 

$ 6, 174,394 
2,315 ,780 

$ 8,490. 174 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (continued) 

Number of Unpaid principal 
2016 contracts balance 
Commercial 6 $ 6.515,950 
Real estate 14 2.455,346 
Construction 
Other --------

Totals 20 $ 8,971,296 

Default occurs when payments are not received in accordance with terms spcci ficd in the loan document, which may 
resull in the loan being fully or partially clwrgcd-o!T For the year ended December 31, 2017, there were three 
restructured mortgage loans that subsequently defaulted resulting in principal charge-offs or $29.300, and two 
restructured commercial Joans that subsequently defaulted resulting in principal charge-offs of$56,000. For the year 
ended December 31.2016, there were no restructured Joans that subsequently defaulted resulting in a principal charge­
off. 

NOTE 6. BANK PREM ISES AND EQUlPMENT 

Major classifications of bank prem ises and equipment and the total accumulated depreciation are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Vehic les 

I .css : accumulated depreciation 

Land 

Bank premises and equipment, net 

$ 

$ 

2017 

1.856.589 
1,604,791 

242,307 

3,703.687 
(3,323,908) 

379.779 
200,460 

580,239 

2016 
-·-·---··----· 
$ 1.856.589 

1,572,896 
178,610 

3,608.095 
(3,24 1.354) 

366.741 
200.460 

$ 567}01 

Depreciation expense f'or the years ended December 31.2017 and 2016, totaled$ I 05 ,969 and $68.295, respectively. 
und is included in equipment and occupancy expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

The Bank has entered into a noncancelable lease agreement with a related pany, consummated at arm's length, for its 
Teays Valley branch. Rent expense for the opernting lease approximated $73,437 and $71 , I 20 for the years ended 
December 31.2017 and 2016, respectively. The minimum annual rental commitment under this lease, exclusive of 
taxes and other charges, payable by the lessee at December 31, 2017, is as follows: 

_Y~...r 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 and thereafter 

Total 

$ 

$ 

24 

Amount 
73.437 
73,437 

73.437 
73.437 
67.317 

361.065 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSJDIAR IES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 7. DEPOSITS 

The following is a sunrniary of 111,(ior categories of deposits at December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

2017 2016 

Non-interesi bearing $ 67.069,056 $ 60,089,407 
Interest bearing: 

Time deposits under $ 100,000 85.301 ,975 88,320,892 
Time deposits over $100,000 222,872, 7Q} 262,468.006 

Total time deposits 308.1 74.678 350. 788.898 
Money market 122,945,369 118,343.095 
Savings _ _ J O, 128,077 28.566.94 7 

Total interest bearing deposits 46 I ,24~, 124 497.698,940 
Total deposils $ 528,317, 180 $ 557,788,347 

Scheduled maturities of ti me and certificates of deposit nt Dccember 3 I. 20 I 7, are as follows: 

Year 
'.:018 
2019 
2020 and thereafler 

Total 

Amount 
$ 179, 156.354 

52,874 ,670 
. 76. 143,654 
$ 308. 174,678 

The Bank has, and expects to have in the fu ture, banking transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors 
and officers of the Bank and their associates. Such related party deposits were accepted on subsiantially ihe same 
terms including interest ra1es and maturi ties as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated 
parties. Aggregate deposit transactions with related part ies approximated $52,352.957 and $44 .583,972 at December 
31. 20 17 mid 2016. respectively. 

NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES 

The components of applicable income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, are 
summarized as follows: 

Current expense: 
Federal 
State 

Total current 

Deferred expense: 

Federal 
State 

Total deferred 

Income tax expense 

25 

2017 2016 
--------···· .. ·····-- ·--··--------·· 

$ 1, 184.736 $ 3,773,245 
315.893 

4,089, I 38 

______ ] 01 ,646 

1.286.382 

1,399.640 (1.527.453) 
(857) (142,866) 

1,398,783 ( 1,670,319) 

$ 2,685. 165 ,;;;,$ _ _,;;2,;_, 4_1 .;;..:,8 •,;;,.8 __ 1 9 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES (continutd) 

Deferred income taxes retlect the net effects or temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabi lilies for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components or 
the Company's deferred tax assets and liabiliti es at December 31, 2017 and 2016. are as follows: 

2017 20 16 

Dtfrrrcd tax assets: 

Allowance for loan losses $ 1.404,085 $ 2,656.769 

Defi ned benefit plan 797,996 1.146.624 

Nonaccrual interest 431.634 214, 13 2 

Unrealized loss on ava ilable- fo r-sa le securities 31.033 

Total deferred tax assets 2.664, 748 4,017,525 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Unrea li zed gain on ava ilable-for-sale securities (76,796) 

Other deferred tax it ems {16,674) 

Total deferred tax I iab i I ties (93.470) 

Net deferred tax assets $ 2,664,748 $ 3,924,055 

No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was recorded at December 31, 201 7 and 20 I 6, as the Company believes 
it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets will be realized because they were supported by recoverable 
taxes paid in prior years. The reduct ion in net deferred ta'I: assets consists primarily of a $1.4 mi 11 ion non-ca'ih charge 
due to the Company's corporate rate being red uced from 35% to 21 % under the newly enacted Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 
of' 2017. Therefore, the deferred tax assets and liabilities were remeasured at the lower rate. 

/\ reconc iliation of the significant differences between the federa l statutory income tax rate and the Company's 
effective income tax rate is as follows: 

Federal statutory rate 
Increase (decrease) resulting from : 

State income tax, net of federal tax benefit 
Tax exempt interest income 
Nondeductible expense 
Rate change fo r remeasured dei'crred tax assets 
Other items. net 

Income tax expense 

NOTE 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

2017 

$ 1,302,495 

67.086 
(33 ,31 ::n 

7,870 
1.376.490 

-----· (35.464) 
$ 2,685.165 

$ 

2016 

2.355,668 

208,489 

(76,734) 
6.810 

- --·-·---~ 
$ 2,418,819 

The Company provides retirement benefits to its employees through the Putnam County Bank 401 (k) Plan. which is 
intended to be corn pliant with Em ployee Retirement Income Security Act (ER ISA ) Section 404(c). The Company's 
total expense associated with the retirement benefit plan approxi mated $61.212 and $54.403 for the years ended 
December 31 , 2017 and 2016. respectively. 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSrDIARlES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 

The Company also maintains a defined benefit pension plan ("the Defined Benefit Plan"). T he Defined Benefit Plan 
was frozen as of October 31. 2012. The Defined 13enefit Plan maintains a December 31 year-end for purposes of' 
computing its benefit obligations. 

The following table sets summarizes activi ty wi th the frozen De lined Benefit Plan in 2017 and 2016: 

Change in fair value of plan assets: 

Fair value at beginning of' measurement period 

Actual gain/( loss) on plan assets 

Contributions 

Benefits paid 

Fair value at end of measurement periods 

Change in benefit obligati on: 

Benefit obligation at beginning of 111easurement period 
Interest cost 

Actuarial gaini( loss) 

Benefits paid 

Benefit obi igat ion at end or 111easure111ent period 

Funded status 

Weighted-average assumptions for balance sheet liability at end of'year: 

Discount rate 

Expected long-term rate of return 

Weighted-average assumptions for benefit cos! at beginning ol·year: 

Discount rate 

Expected long-term rate of return 

$ 

$ 

2017 

5.383 ,586 

628,071 

189,000 
(427.30 I) 

5.773 ,356 

(8,5 I 3,0 I 8) 

(340.316) 

(650,282) 

427.301 ----·--· 
(9.076.3 !l) 

(3,302,959) 

3.60% 

7.00% 

4.10% 

7.00% 

$ 

$ 

2016 

5,341 , 178 

279.477 

I 87.000 
( 424.069) 

5.383.586 

(8,449,532) 

(354,224) 

(133,331) 

424,069 

(8,513.0 I 8) 

(3 ,129,432) 

4.10% 

7.00% 

4.30% 

7.00% 

The unfunded status of the plan as of December 31, 2017 is included wit hin Other L i11bilities 011 the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. At December 3 I, 20 17, Accumulated O ther Comprehensive Income includes a balance of 
$2.820.846, net of'tax. related to 1he underfunded pension liability. 

Tilt: fo ll owing table presents the componenls of the net periodic pension cost of the Defined Benefit Plan: 

Components of net periodic benefit: 

lnkrcst cost 

[xpectcd return on plan assets 

Net amonization and deferral 

Net periodic pension cost 

20 17 ----·----

$ 340,316 

(394, I 04) 

332,240 

$ 278,452 -

2016 

$ 354.224 

(388,308) 

340.036 

$ 305,952 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

NOTE 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 

The Bank anticipates maki ng contributions of $ 185,204 to the plan for the year endi ng December 31, 2017. The 
fo l lowing table summ arizes the expected benefi ts to be paid in each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the 
fi ve years thereafter: 

Plan year ending December 3 1. 

2018 

20 19 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 th rough 2027 

Total 

Expected benefits 

to be pai d 

$ 436.922 

$ 

436,029 

43 I, 146 

428,437 

427.261 

... )~289.202 
4,448,997 

Asset allocation for the De lined Bene tit Pension Plan as of the measurement date. by asset category, is as foll ows: 

Target A l loca tion Allowable allocation Percen tage of plan assets at 

Pl an Assets 

l :quity Securi ti es 

Debt secur it ies 

Ot her 

Totals 

20 17 range 

50% 40-60'Yo 

50% 40-60% 

0-3% 

D ecember 31, 2017 December 31, 20 16 

5 1% 46% 

48% 53% 

1% 1% 

100% 100% 

T he primary long-tenn objecti ve for the plan is to maintain assets at a level that w ill sufficien tl y cover future 
benefic ic1ry ob ligati ons. The plan is overseen by Pentegra Retirement Serv ices, who wi ll invest the assets of the plc1n in 
a diversi fied com binati on of asset classes, investment strategies. and pooled vehicles. The asset allocat ion guidel ines 
displayed in the tab le above reflect the B unk's risk tolerance and Jong- term object i ves and is rev iewed periodically to 
meet the above target all oc<1 ti ons. The expected long-term ra te of return for the plan ' s assets is based on the expected 
return of each of the above categories, weighted based on the median of the target ,1J locat ion for each class. The major 
categories of assets in the Com pany's Defined Bene fi t Plan as of year-end are presented in the fo l lowing table. Assets 
are segregated by the leve l of the valuation inputs w ithin the fa ir va lue hierarchy establ ished by ASC Topic 820 
util ized to measure fai r value (see Note 14 for fai r value hicrnrchy). 

T he fo ll owing tables presen t the ba lances of the plan asse ts. by fa ir va lL1e, as of December 3 1, 2017 and 2016: 

December 3 I , 20 17 

Cas h and cash equivalents 

Fixed income mut uc1 I funds 

Common/coll ecti ve trusts 

Equity mutual funds 

Totals 

$ 

$ 

Fair Va lue Measurement Using 

I .eve ! I Level 2 Level 3 

44,696 $ s 
2.798.558 

305,993 

2,624. 109 

5,467,363 s 305,993 $ 

28 

Total 

$ 44,696 

2,798.558 

305.993 

2,624,109 

s 5,773,356 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SlJBSIDIA RIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 

December 31, 2016 Fair Value Measurement Us ing 

Level I Leve l 2 Level 3 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 72.654 $ $ 

Fixed income mutual fund s 2,83 1,243 
Co111mon/collec1ive trusts 277.807 
Equity mutual funds 2.201,882 

Totals $ 5.105,779 $ 277.807 $ 

NOTE 10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Total 

$ 72,654 
2,831,243 

277.807 
2,20 1,882 

$ 5,383 ,586 

In the normal course of business. the Company and its subs idiaiy, Putnam County Bank, have loans. deposits and 
other 1ransactions wi th its executi ve officers, directors and certain business organizations and individuals with which 

such persons arc associated a~ discussed in Notes 4, 6 and 7. In the opin ion of management, such transacti ons are 

cons isknt wi th prudent banking practices and are within applicable banking regu lations. 

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS ANO CONTINGENCIES 

The Bank is a party to certain financial instruments with off~balance sheet ri sk in the normal course of business to 
rr1ect the financ ing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to cxtend credit. 
wmmercial letters of credit. and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of 
credi t and interest rate risk in excess of'the amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The contract or 
notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has in particular classes of' financial 

instruments. 

A summary of the notional amounts of the financ ial instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December 31, 2017 and 
20 16. is as fol lows: 

Contract Amount 201 7 2016 

Commitments to extend credit $ 17.5 11.60 I $ 23 ,325.922 
Commerc ial and standby letters of credit 415.750 133 ,262 

Tota ls $ 1792735 ] i 23.459.184 

The Bank ·s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for 

commitments to extend credit and commercial and standby letters of credit is represen ted by the contractual amount of 
those instruments. The Bank uses the same cred it policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it 
docs ll>r un-balance sheet instruments. 

Commi tments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as Jong as there is no violation of any condition 
establi shed in the contract. Commitments generally have fi xed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
re(J uirc payment of a fee. Since commitments may expire without being drawn upon. the total commitment amoun1s do 
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's credit worthiness 011 a case­
by-case basis . The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary upon ex tension or credit, is based on 

management's credit evaluation of the counterpai1 . Collateral requirements vary but may include accounts receivable, 
inventory, property. plant and equi pment. or real estate. 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SlJBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 

Commerci al and standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the 
performance or a customer to a th i rd par1y. These guarantees arc primarily issued to support private borrowing 
a1ningcments . The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extend ing. 
loans. 

I .oss contingencies, including claims and legal actions ar ising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as 
liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of'loss can be reasonably estimated. Based 
upon information currently availab le. management believes that such loss contingencies, in the aggregate, will not 
have a material adverse effect on the Bank ' s business, financial position, or results of operations. 

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF CREDJT RISK 

The majority of the Bank's loans. commitments. and commercial and standby letters of credit have been granted to 
customers in the Bank's market area. Investments in state and municipal securities and loans to governmental entities 
are within the Bank 's home state. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in Note 4. The distribution 
of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. Commercial and standby letters of 
creel i1 were granted primarily to comrnerc ial borrowers. 

NOTE 13. REGULATORY MATTERS 

Putnam Bancshares, Inc. 's principal source of funds for future dividend payments to shareholders is from dividend 
payments received from its wholly-owned subsidiary. Putnam County Bank. 

The Bank, as a state cha11ered member bank of the Federal Reserve System, is subject to the dividend restrictions set 
forth by the West Virginia Division of Financial Instituti ons as well as the Federa l Reserve Board . Under such 
restrictions. the Bank may not. without the prior approval of the West Virginia Divi sion ofTinancial Institutions and 
the Federal Reserve Board. declare dividends in excess of the sum of the current year' s net income, as defined. plus 
the reta ined net profits from the two preced ing years. The Bank normally restricts dividends to a lesser amount. The 
dividends as of December 31.2017, that the Bank could declare without the approval of the West Virginia Division of 
Financial Institutions and the Federal Reserve Board amounted to approximately $8,729.155. 

The Bank is also su bject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking 
agencies. Failure to meet the minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by regulators that. if 
undertaken, could have a material effect on the Bank and the consol idated financi al statements. Capital adequacy 
guide! ines require minimum ratios or 6% for Tier I capital, 8% for total risk-based capital, and 4% for Tier l leverage 
cap ital. To be we! I capitalized under the regulatory framework for prom pr corrective actions. the ratios must be at least 
8%. I 0%. and 5%, res pee ti vely . 

Capital amounts and classifications arc also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk­
weighting of assets and certain off- ba lance sheet items. and other factors. 

As of December 31, 2017 and 20 l 6, the Bank exceeded all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject and 
had regulatory capital ratios in excess of the levels established for well capitalized institutions. Management believes. 
as or December 3 I. 2017 and 20 l 6, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which 
they were subject. As of December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from the Bank's primary regu latory agency 
categori zed the Bank as we ll capi talized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be 
categorized as well capitalized. an institution must maintain minimum total ri sk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier I 
leverage ratios as set forth in the table below . There are no conditions or events since the notification that management 

believes have changed the Bank ' s category. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 13. REGULATORY MATTlmS (continued) 

The Bank ·s actual ratios as well as a comparison of the period-end capital ba lances with the related amounts 
established by the regulatory agencies are as follows: 

December31 ,20 17 
Total risk-based capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
Tier I capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
Tier 1 leverage capital 

(to adjusted average assets) 

December 31, 2016 
Total risk-based capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
Tier I capital 

(to risk-weighted assets) 
Tier I leverage capital 

(to adjusted average assets) 

Ratios Actual 

27.06% $ 94,579,000 

25.80% 90.192.000 

13.90% 90,192.000 

23.99% $ 96,431,000 

22.74% 91.380,000 

13 .94% 91.380,000 

NOTE 14. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Capi tal amounts 
Minimum Well capitalized 

$ 27.966.000 $ 34,958.000 

20.975,000 27.966.000 

25.948.000 32,435.000 

$ 32, I 55,000 $ 40.193,000 

24, I 16,000 32. I 55,000 

26.216.000 32.771.000 

ASC Topic 825. Financial Instruments, requires disclosure o!'the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, 
including those financial assets and financia l liabilities that are not measured and reported at fair value on a recurring 
basis or nonrccurri ng ba.~is. The following summarizes the methods and significant assumptions used by the Bank in 
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Cash and Due fro111 Banks: The carryi ng values ofcush and due from banks approx imate their estimated fair 
va lue (Level I). 

Federal hinds Sold: The ca1Tying val ues of federal funds sold approximate thei r fair value (Level I). 

Investment Securities: Estimated fair values of' investment securities arc based on quoted market prices. 
where avai I able (Level 1 J. If quot.eel market prices arc not available. estimated fair values are based on 
quoted market prices of comparable securities (Level 2). 

Loans: The estimated fair values for loans are computed based on scheduled fi,1ture cash nows of principal 
and interest, discounted at interest rates currently o/Tered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar 
credit risks and terms (Level 2). 

Accrued Interest Receivable and J\ccrucd Interest Payable: The carrying values of accrued interest 
receivable on the Bank· s investment securities and loans is assumed to approximate fair value. L ikcwise, the 
carrying value of accrued interest payable on the Bank's interest-bearing deposits is assumed to approximate 
fa ir values (Level I). 

3! 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SlJBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLTJ)ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 14. FAIR VALUES OF FfNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Deposits: The estimated fair values or demand deposits are equal to their carrying values. Fair values for 
time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation at rates Cll!Tently offered for deposits 
with similar remaining maturi ties (Level 2). 

The carrying values and est imated foir values of the flank's financial instruments at December 31, 20 I 7 and 2016, arc 
summarized as follows: 

Financial assets: 
Cash and due from banks 
Federal funds sold 
Securities available-for-sale 
Securities held-to-maturity 
Loans 
;\ccrued interest receivable 

Totals 

Financial liabilities: 
Deposits 
Accrued interest payable 

Tota ls 

2017 

Carrying Value 

$ 19.139,217 
47,600,000 
64.8 I 1,4 53 
91 ,54 I ,4 59 

390,402.763 

_ _!_{12~~2 
$ 6 I 4.924.499 

$528,317.180 
1.055,710 

$ 529,372.890 

Estimated Fair 
Value 

$ 19, 139,2 I 7 
47,600,000 
64 ,811 ,453 
91,477,789 

390.402,763 
I ,429,607 

$ 614.860.829 

$ 528,317,180 
1.055,7 JO 

$ 529,372.890 

Carrying Value 

$ 17.099,705 
70,000,000 
70.260.008 
47.883,320 

435,870. I 82 
1,737,824 

$ 642,85 I .039 

$ 557,7 88.347 
I. I 97, I 92 

$ 558,985,539 

2016 
Estimated Fair 

Value 

$ I 7.099,705 
70,000,000 
70,260.008 
47.878 ,945 

435,870. I 82 
1,737,824 

$ 642 .846.664 

$ 557,788.347 
1.197,192 

$ 558,985.539 

ASC Topic 820. Fuir Vu/11e Meas11reme111 and Disclosures. defines fair value a~ the exchange price that would be 
received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the a~ser 
or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 011 the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 also 
establ ishes a fa ir value hiernrchy \Vhich requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use 
or unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may he used to 
measure lair value. 

Level I: Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reponing 
entity has the abil ity to access as or the measurement date. 

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level l prices, such as quoted prices for similar 
assets or I iabi lit ies. quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or· can he 
corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own assumptions about the a~sumplions 
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

Accordingly. securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time to time. 
the Bank may be required to record other assets al fair value on a nonrecurring bas is. These nonrecun·ing fair va lue 
adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or market accounting or write-downs of individual a~sets . 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 14. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

/\ description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value follows, as well as the 
classification of such instruments within the valuation hierarchy: 

Securities Available ror Sale: Securities are classified within Level I where quoted market prices arc 
available in an active market. Inputs include securities that have quoted prices in active markets for identical 
asset s. If quoted market prices are not ava ilab le, foir value is estimated using quoted prices of securities with 
similar characteristics. at which point the securities would be classified with Level 2 of the hierarchy. Level 
2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities and municipal 
bonds. 

Impaired Loans: Loans arc measured for impairment using the methods permitted by ASC Topic J IO, 
Receivables. Fair value of impaired loans is measured by either the loans obtainable market price. if 
available (Level I), the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent (Level 2), orthe present 
va lue of expected foturc cash flows, discounted at the loan's effective interest rate (Level 3). Fair value of 
the co ll ateral is determined by appraisals or by independent valuation. 

Other Real Estate Owned ('·OREO'} Properties are recorded at the balance of the loan or at estimated foir 
value less estimated selling. costs, wh ichever is less, at the date acquired. Fair values of OREO at December 
31. 2017. are determined by sales agreements or appraisals, and costs to sci I are based on esli mat ion per the 
terms and conditions of the sales agreements or amounts commonly used in real estate transactions. Inputs 
include appraisal va lues on the propert ies or recent sales activity for similar assets in the propeny·s market, 
and thus OREO measured at fair value would be classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy. 

Assets at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

December 3 I, 2017 

Available-for-sale securities 
lJ.S. Government treasuries 
U.S. Government agencies 
Municipal bonds 
Mutual funds 

Totals 

December 31. 2016 

Available-for-sale securities 
U.S. Government treasuries 
U.S. Government agencies 
Municipal bonds 
Mutual funds 

Totals 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Level I Level 2 Level J 

$ $ I 0.040,820 $ 

50,439,591 
2,875.018 

-········ ' ·456,024 
$ 1,456,024 $ 63,355,429 $ 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Level I Level 2 Level J 

$ $ 10,161.130 $ 

56,085 ,395 
3,052.294 

961,189 
- -----·--····- ···-·--···-·····-·······--·· 

$ 961,!89 $ 69,298,819 $ 

.13 

Total 

$ I 0.040,820 
50.439.591 
2,875.018 
1,456,024 

$ 64 ,811 ,453 

Total 

$ I 0. 161.130 
56.085,395 
3,052.294 

96!,!89 

s 70,260,008 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 14. FAJR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

The Bank may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecun·ing basis in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These include a%ets that are measured at the lower or 
cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the encl of the period. The following table measures 
financial assets rnea~urecl at fair value on anonrecu1Ting basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

rair Value Measurement Using 
December 3 I , 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Impaired loans $ '!; 47,573,512 $ $ 47,573 ,512 

OREO $ $ 1,738,269 $ $ 1,738,269 

rair Value Measurement Using 

December 3 I , 2016 Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Impaired loans $ $ 42,618,668 s $ 42,6 18,668 

OREO $ $ 3.91 J,555 s $ 3,913.555 

ASC Topic 825 provides the Company with an option to report selected ilnancial assets and liabilities at fair value. The 
fair value option established by this statement pem1its the Company to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at 
speci lied election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been ek'cted in 
earnings at each reprn1ing date subsequent to implementa1ion. 

The Company has chosen not to elect the fair value option for any items that are not already ,·equired to be measured at 
fair value in accordance with U.S. CAAP and, as such. has not included any gains or losses in earnings for the year ended 
December 31.2017. 
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PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 15. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Condensed financial infonnation of Putnam Bancshares, Inc. (Parent Company) is presented below. 

BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 

Cash 

lnvestme111 in Putnam County Bank 

$ 

December 31 , 

2017 

170,5 15 $ 

87.0 I 0,930 

8.853 

2016 

168.644 

87,900,234 

9.120 Investment in Putnam County Tit le Insurance Agency 
-··--······-······-··---··--·-

TOTAL ASSETS 

Ll.t\BILITIES AND STOCKI IOLDERS' EQUITY 

Accounts payable 

Income taxes payable 

TOTAi. LIABILITIES 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

!NCO.ME 

EXPENSES: 

Operating expenses 

Income before income tax benefit and equity in 

undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 

App l icable income taxes 

Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 

Equity in und istributed earnings of subsidiaries 

Net income 

35 

$ 87,190,298 $ 88.077.998 

$ - $ 

574 

574 -------

---~~J..89, 724 88,077,998 

$ 87,190.298 $ 88.077.998 

Years Ended 

2017 2016 

$ 1.750,200 $ 1,724 ,835 

8.329 8.214 

1.741.871 1,716,62 1 

574 

1.741,297 1.716.621 

(595,59~) 2,772.676 

$ 1,1 45,702 $ 4.489.297 



PUTNAM BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUUSIDIAIUES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 15. PARENT COMPANY .FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Years Ended 

2017 2016 

CASH FLOWS HWM OPERATING ACTIVITfES 
Net income 

1\djust111cn1s to reconcile net income to net cash 

rrovidcd by operating activities: 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 
lncrease/(decrcasc) in accounts payable 
Jncrease/(decrcase) in income taxes payable 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPl.:RATING ACTIVJTIES 

CASI-I FLO\VS FROM FINANCING ACTlVITIES 
Dividends paid 

NET CASH USED IN f lNANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET CJIANCiE IN CASH AND CAS I I EQUIVALENTS 

CASH .1\ND CASH l:QUJVALL:NTS. BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 

36 

$ 1.145,702 $ 4,489,297 

595.595 

574 

J,741J2!_ 

(1,740,000) 

___ ( I, 740,000) 

1.871 

168.644 

(2,772,677) 

(39.54 7) 

1,677.073 

( 1.680.000) 

( 1,680.0_Q.Q) 

(2.927) 

171 ,571 

$ I 70,5 I 5 $ 168,644 
.;__-----'--


